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1. Name

vll

historic The Drexel Development Historic District

and/or common

2. Location
3900 block of Pine, both sides; 3900 block of Baltimore,

street & number o7t} gide; 400 block S. 40th Street, east side. not for publication
city, town Philadelphia — vicinity of congressional district
state Pennsylvania code county Philadelphia code

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

X_ district —_ public X occupied —— agriculture ——_ museum
—_building(s) _X_private ___ unoccupied __ commercial —__park
——— structure — both - work in progress - educational X private residence
— - site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment __.religious
—— Object ——in process X yes: restricted —_government - scientific
— being considered ——yes: unrestricted — industriat —_transportation
) — _no — military —_other:

4. Owner of Property .

name See attached lists

street & number

city, town — vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Department of Records
street & number Philadelphia City Hall, Broad & Market Streets
cny, town Philadelphia state PA

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title has this property been determined elegible? __yes ___no
date - federal ___state ___county ___ local
depository for survey records -

city, town : state
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Owners: 3900 block Pine Street, South side

3912: George R. Goldstone, Arthur Korn, Fred Korn
7300 City Line .Avenue
19151

3914: George R. Goldstone, Arthur Korn, Fred Korn
7300 City Line Avenue
19151

3916: Michael A. Karp
3416 Sansom Street
19104

3918: George R. Goldstone, Arthur Korn, Fred Korn
7300 City Line Avenue
19151

3920: George & Marianna Thomas
3920 Pine St.
19104

3922: Enzo & Calendula Orviets
3922 Pine St.

19104

. 3924: Mary W. & Howard Vincent
508 N. Willow St.
Kent, OH

3926: Oscar V. & Eleanor H. Batson
3926 Pine St.
19104

3928: Frederick W. & Evelyn Smith
3928 Pine St.
19104

3930: Frederick W. & Evelyn Smith
3928 Pine St.
19104

3932: Kazchiko Adachi
3932 Pine St.
19104

Page 2

Tax Parcel Number

271090900
271091000
271091100
271091200
271091300
271091400
271091500
271091600
271091700
A271091800

271091900
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3934: Michael A. Karp 271092000
University City Housing
3416 Sansom St.
19104
3936: "o 271092100
3938: Peter & Ulla Hunt 271092200
3938 Pine St.
19104
3940: Fred & Anita Cohen 271092300
7300 City Line Avenue
19151
3942: " 271092400
3944: Frances Ella & Thomas Ryan 271092500
3944 Pine St. '
19104
3946 " 271092600
3948: " 271092705
3950: " 271092705
3952: Michael A. Karp 271092900
University Housing
3416 Sansom St.
19104
3954: George R. & Jackie Goldstone; Fred & Anita Cohen 271093000
7300 City Line Avenue
19151
3956: Alan Horwitz, Michael Karp, Alan Itz, Michael Itz 271093100
3956 Pine St. :
19104
3958: Frederick A. & Elsie A. Horn 271093200
3958 Pine St. '
19104
3960: Fred Cohen 271093300

3960 Pine St.
19104




- FHR-8-300 (11-78) ’ B

United States Department of the Interior ' —

A g

Heritage c°_nservation and Recreation Service For HCRSuse o'nvl.y‘
National Register of Historic Places received
Inventory—Nomination Form  date entered
Continuation sheet Item number 4 - Page 4
Owners: 3900 block of Pine Street, North side Tax Parcel Number
3909: Michael A. Karp ' 271088700

3909 Pine St.

19104
3911: Michael Karp 271088800

University City Housing
3909 Pine St.

19104

3913: George R. Goldstone, Fred R. Cohen, Jeffrey Korn, 271088900

Mark Korn

7300 City Line Avenue
19151

3915: George R. & Jackie Goldstone, Fred & Anita Cohen 271089000
7300 City Line Avenue ’
19151

3917: Fred & Anita Cohen, George & Jackie Goldstone 271089100
7300 City Line Avenue
19151 '

3919: Joseph J. & Joan Canavan . 271089200
3919 Pine St. -
19104

3921: George & Jackie Goldstone, Fred & Anita Cohen 271089300
7300 City Line Avenue
19151

3923: Fred & Anita Cohen 271089400
1528 Walnut St.
19102

3925: Fred & Anita .Cohen 271089500
1528 Walnut St.
19102

3927: J. & E. Rhode ' ' 271089600

Meeting House Lane
Merion, PA 19066
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3929: J. & E. Rode 271089700
Meeting House Lane
Merion, PA 19066
3931: " (7 apartments) 271089800
3933: George R. & Jackie GoldstOné, Fred & Anita Cohen 271089900
7300 City Line Avenue
19151
3935: George & Jackie Goldstone, Fred & Anita Cohen 271090000
7300 City Line Avenue
19151
3937: George & Jackie Goldstone, Fred & Anita Cohen 271090100
7300 City Line Avenue
19151
3939: " 271090200

Owners: Baltimore Avenue, 3900 block, North side

3913: John F. & Faye House ' .
3913 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3915: Campus Investments Corp.
4043 Walnut St.
19104

3917: Harry A. Rutenberg & Continental Bank
1500 Market St.
19102

3919: Campus Investments Corp.
4043 Walnut St.
19104

3921: Harry A. Rutenberg, Howard Smith & Continental Bank
1500 Market St.
19102

Tax Parcel Number

271125500

271125600

271125700

271125800

271125900
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3923: Philip J. Smith 271126000
3923 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3925: Rose B. Brady _ 271126100
3925 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3927: Kenneth Smith, Alan Horowitz, Howard Smith & Continental 271126200
Bank
4043 Walnut St.
19104

3929: Harry A. Rutenberg, Howard Smith, Alan Horowitz, & 271126300

_ Continental Bank
1500 Market St.

19102

3931: Stephen & Carole Herman; Jack & Ethyle Herman 271126400
3931 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3933: John L. & Grace F. Pilling 271126500
3933 Baltimore Ave.
19104 .

3935: Fred & Anita Cohen 271126600
1420 Walnut St. '
19102

3937: Mary J. McNulty ' 271126700
3937 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3939: Harry Rutenberg, & Howard Smith ' 271126800
1500 Market St.
19102

3941: Harry Rutenberg, Howard Smith & Continental Bank 271126900
1500 Market St.
19102

3943: Harry Rutenberg, & Howard Smith 271127000

1500 Market St.
19102
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3945; Harry Rutenberg & Howard Smith
3945 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3947 "

3949: Viola T. Maguire
3949 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3951: Michael A. Karp
University City Housing
3416 Sansom St.
19104

3953: Stephen & Carole Herman, Jack & Ethyle Herman
3900 Ford St.
19131

3955; Madeline D. Molan
3955 Baltimore Ave.
19104

' 3957: Mildred B. Berman

3957 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3959: Delaware Valley Institute
3959 Baltimore Ave.
19104

3961: Allan Ceen

3961 Baltimore Ave.
19104

Owners: 400 block S. 40th Sﬁreet, East side

401: Joseph Canavan
490 Plymouth Road
Glenside, PA

403: " .

405: "

271127100

271127200

271127300

271127400

271127500

271127600

271127700

271127900

271127910

Tax Parcel Number

271122100

271122200

271122300
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407: George R. Goldstone,AArthur Korn, Fred Korn
7300 City Line Ave.
19151

409: Johseph Canavan
490 Plymouth Road
Glenside, PA

411: Eugene Block
Merion, PA

413: Fred Cohen
7300 City Line Avenue
19151

- 415: Steven Herman
46th & Girard Ave.
19131

417: Joseph Canavan
490 Plymouth Rd.
Glenside, PA

421: Mr. Manzi
421 S. 40th St. . .

19104 .

Intrusions:

3957 Baltimore Avenue ——- 1960's apartment building

Buildings Contributing to the District

3912-45
3956-60
401-409
3948-54
3909-39
3913-47
3949~55
3959

3961

Pine Street, Victorian Rowhouses, 1884
Pine Street, " " "

S. 40th Street, " " "
Pine Street, 2nd Empire doubles, c.1870
Pine Street, Italianate row, 1874
Baltimore, Victorian Rowhouses, 1884
Baltimore, 2nd Empire doubles, c.1870
Baltimore, Office Building, c.1840s
Baltimore, Stable Building, c.1880s

411-17 S. 40th Street, Italianate row, c.1865
421 S. 40th Street, Italianate commercial/residential, c.1865

271122400

271122500

271122600

271122700

271122800

271122900

271123000

S TR -
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Aéb‘ndihon s TSI Check one " Check one
& gxcellent -~ .. deteriorated: X __unaltered. - *_2 original site
good —_ruins _2(_ altered —— moved date

 ——_ unexposed

L

%;;é?lbe the pre_ser"it‘"'Snd original (it known) physical appearance

Beps pagirunt oo < e R Srtms weemrn s

Thecproposed Drexel. Development Hlstorlc District is a group of just over seventy-five
BﬂII&Tngs ‘TocatedtoTthe Southwest™ oL "the " Uiiversity 6f Pénnsylvania Historiec District
fh;West Philadelphia. It includes the residences fronting on both sides of the 3900
BIGCK 6L Piné Street on the forth sidé 6f thHe 3900 block of Baltimore Avenue, and the
buildings on the east side .of South:40th Street-between Plne Street and Baltimore Avenue.

H

The Sloan Projects

fn, thé years just before the Civil War, with the extension of the street car lines from
Genter-€ityracross-the-Sehuytkitl~River;—West -Philadetphiasor Blockley as it was known
then, began to-flourish as-Philadelphia' s premier residential district, laid out with a
d1y suburban fE¥avor. - Among the -earlier ‘large~scale projects in the area were a
series of terraces designed by Samuel Sloan, in whole or in part, that centered on the.
ltimore Pike.:-At Hamilton and Woodland Terracés, large porched, -Italianate doubles
1ined the streets; while on the 4000 block of Pine, on the south side, gracious singles

- 8% doubles were mixed, and.seb.up.on.a berm, back .from the roadway. The two large Ital-

i§nate‘bu1ld1ngs on .South 40th Street (photos 10,12) as well as the four doubles—set in
Bairs.“backito back,.at.the.western ends of.Pine.and.Baltimore (photos 5,8)--responded
g@t@g,the War. had.ended to the development to the west..

—i QIBIFLT JaR B BN » Toloft Suticse -
At_the"northeast corner of 40th and Baltimore, a large mlxed residential and commercial
buikding-was erected, reflecting directly to the development in the area both in terms

of £itelated fesidential usé (smalEnéighborhood shops) -and architectural style. In fact,
basédion stylistic “evidence and the”frequency of Sloan's commissions in the area, an attri-

bution of the-building" to~Sam Sloan would appear to: be 1n brder.

g&e edifice is arranged in a tripartite comp031tion, the central pavilion rising to three

- gtories.and.-flanked. by two-story--wings,.creating.a.nave/aisle relationship reminiscent of

Italian church architecture.: The‘gabled:roof of the central portion is symbolically re-—
peated in the small pediments -formed by the bracketed cornice of the wings. The stuccoed
walls are quoined and pierced with two basic window types—-doubled, round-headed sash in
ghe®'decond - floors of the wings, and heavily-hooded, four-over-four, double-hung sash in
the central portion of the facade. The shopfronts continue the tripartite arrangement

gypical of the work belng done by Sloan in this period.
wt ¥ P -

Just to the north, a second building was constructed about the same time (photos 10,12).
As was .the -case with its neighbor, it was styled in the Italianate with a bracketed over-
hanging cornice and arranged in an overall tripartite composition with a central pavilion
énde.side-wings. Executed in braownstone rather than. stucco on brick, the building is
further différentiated having been ¢onstricted as four residences, with gabled entrance-
¥ayss. first-floor bays (altered) and: four-over-four, square—headed windows.

Tt i

€he residential construction in this period continued to spread eastwardly from the

~BUttessfil Sloan Préjects to the west, and~included the construction of four medium-sized

doubles, two on Pine and two on Baltimore. The Baltimore doubles (photo 8),like those on
Pine;were-constructed in -a mansarded-Second Empire style, though here in a suburban (in
stone with a porch) rather than urban (in brick, with a stoop) mode. The concave mansards

cepcw'c' Lol 3% S rETorey -
e e L LT - . ,

City, 1
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are sheathed with hexagonal-patterned slate shingles and punctuated with bracketed,
pedimented dormers. Below the bracketed cornice, the stone walls, laid in random
ashlar, are pierced with two-over-two windows on the second floor and floor-to-ceiling
windows on the first floor, both finished with segmentally-arched heads and slightly-
projecting drip moldings. The ground floor porches are adjusted for the doubled, side-
hall entrance and finished with fancy scrollworked brackets. '

The Pine Street doubles (photo 5) also are finished with a concave mansard, though the
slates are banded in three tiers with rectangular, hexagonal, and then rectangular
patterning. Double brackets support the over-hanging cornice, while the plain brick
walls are pierced with two-over-two, double-hung sash finished with segmentally-arched
heads. The entrance to 3448-50 was altered, probably in the late-1930's or early-1940's,
when the building was converted into apartments with a rear addition.

The last portion of the early-1870's Sam Sloan-related work was begun in 1872 when a
major West Philadelphia real estate broker, Annesley R. Govett, pulled together eighteen
lots on the north side of the 3900 block of Pine. Deed records indicate a series of
transactions between builders and investors that documents an interesting turn of
events.  In 1872 Govett transfered title for the eighteen lots to builder John G.
Williams, who transfered title to Charles E. Hires, druggist and founder of Hires Root
Beer, and Bayard Butler, a businessman. The last two clearly were investing capital
while Williams was the prime contractor on the job. The project apparently fell
through, due no doubt to the Jay Cooke-inspired panic of 1873, for in 1875 Govett again
received title to the land, still without houses, and began a series of transfers to a
new builder, Jacob Wireman, and to investors William Eanning and Charles E. Henry.

Deed recordings indicate the houses were completed by 1876.

As completed, the houses (photos 1,2) were handsome, well-appointed rows, with over-
hanging cornices supported on scrolled brackets that sprung from molded frieze courses.
Deep, drip moldings and door surrounds, richly-carved with stylized floral designs,
framed the two-over-two, double-hung sash and the arched entrance ways. Marble water
tables finished the bases. Again, an attribution of Samuel Sloan is in order, based
on stylistic evidence and the fact that Sloan had executed almost innumerable comm-
issions in the area.

The Drexel Project

While Govett was assembling the land on the north side of Pine, Anthony J. Drexel,
founder and head of Drexel and Company, assumed, from disparate sources, title for
almost the entire block now bounded by Pine, mew 39th, Baltimore and 40th Streets,
excluding those properties,discussed above, that were already developed. But even
though by 1877 he had acquired virtually all the land required for his development,
it was not until about 1883 that work was begun on four groups of rowhousing of very

‘
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“similar design that infilled the existing construction and finished the frontage of
Pine, 40th and Baltimore. The four groups were addressed: 3912 to 3946 Pine Street

_ (photos 3,4), 3956-50 Pine Street (photo 3), 401-409 South 40th Street (photo 12),
and 3913-16 Baltimore Avenue (photos 6,7). :

The typical house was of brick and wood joist construction. The facade was topped
with a pressed-metal cornice composed of: a molded sima finished at the bottom with
a saw-tooth fringe; a cavetto frieze punctuated by rosettes; and a pinched modillion

_course, all of which are supported on miniature, molded brick consoles and vertically-
striated brick courses. The decorative work continues down the facade with a frieze
_course above the first and second floors of inset terra cotta panels, framed in molded
brick. Simple stone lintels and sills; a stone water table; and a wood-surrounded,
paneled, single-light door finished the facade. :

Though all the houses were of near identical design, each group was treated slightly
'different, no doubt to provide a range of options for the range of tastes in the

market place. The houses on Pine Street all had one, double-width window on the

first floor, 3956-60 being built also on larger lots. On Baltimore Avenue, two,

single-width windows finished the ground floors. The 40th Street houses are the most
~distinct, being generally wider and designed with doubled-entrance doors. 407 and

409 South 40th had porches added sometime around the turn of the century.

Based on stylistic evidence and the previous association of the client and architect,

it would seem most likely that the rows of houses were designed by G.W. and W.D. Hewitt.

-

~



8. Significan‘ 4

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below .

—_prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric X community planning ___ landscape architecture____ religion

_—_1400-1499 _____ archeology-historic —___conservation _—law _—_science

——1500-1599 __ agriculture — . economics — literature __ sculpture

—1600-1699 _X_architecture — education —— military — social/

— 1700-1799 ___ art - engineering — music humanitarian

_X 1800-1899 ___ commerce ___ exploration/settlement ____ philosophy — theater

— 1900~ —_ communications — industry —__politics/government ___ transportation
—_ invention . ——. other (specify)

Specific dates  1870-1884 __Builder/Architect (probably) Samuel Sloan & G.W.&W.D. Hewitt

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) RO A O w1
By the 1870's, the population of Philadelphia had greatly expanded. Natural growth
coupled with immigration (by 1860 there already were over four million foreign-born

in the United States, mostly centered in the large eastern cities) had begun to extend
the urban development well beyond the.old city limits of Vine to South, river to river.
This trend was apparent even before the Civil War, when, through the Act of Consolidation
of 1854, the city of Philadelphia assumed the boundaries of the county of Philadelphia.
After the War, rows of new housing seemed to rlse overnight to the north, northeast,
south. and west of Center City. o e, . - v
The process of urban expansion, though codified through governmental legislation such °
as the Act of Consolidation, in actuality was in the hands of the private sector. Most
new housing was built on speculation, often with a developer, architect and builder pooling
capital and investing sweat equity. The result was small projects ranging from just a

few townhouses to perhaps two or three blocks of rows at best. The proposed Drexel
Development Historic District resulted from the great urban expansion of the 19th century
and the speculative building process that fulfilled the needs of that expansion.

And while the fabric of the proposed district is part of the massive, city-wide building
campaign, architecturally the houses and small shops in- the district stand a cut above

the norm. The South 40th Street Italianate buildings both were modish, well-constructed
designs that, in their formal arrangement, sougit to cfeate internal cohesion as well as
to project monumentality. The Govett houses on Pine are equally impressive, their rela-
tively rich ornamentation distinguishing them from the more usual, modestly-adorned
Italianate rows across the city. While the Drexel rows shows an added effort in their
sophisticated cornice designs and the teera cotta and molded brick banding that alleviated
the potential starkness of the brick facades.

The reason for the fairly-high caliber design in these ubiqutious Philadelphia rows, no
doubt, reflects the probable involvement of Samuel Sloan and the Hewitt Brothers. The
importance of both architectural firms as imaginative, successful designers of the
.second-half of the 19th century is now generally recognized, Hewitt having been involved
in the design of landmark buildings such as the Academy of Fine Arts and the Bellvue
Stratford Hotel, and Sloan, the Woodland and Hamilton Terraces and the Pennsylvania
Hospital for the Insane, to mention just a few of their important commissions.

The quality also reflects the developers involved both who worked extensively in West
Philadelphia, where they also both lived. Govett was a neighborhood real estate developer
highly involved in the development of West Philadelphia, his largest project probably
being the now demolished court houses located at 36th and Sansom Streets. Drexel was
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in a class of his own. Making a fortune in both banking and speculative developing,
Drexel became one of West Philadelphia's leading residents and benefactors. His
family compound still stands in the center of Pennsylvania's campus, a fine collection
of houses designed by the Wilson Brothers and T.R. Williamson. He also to a large
degree was responsible for the building of the Protestant Episcopal Church of the Holy
Savior at 38th and Ludlow streets as well as Drexel University just a few blocks east
of his church. Both developers were community men with a strong interest in the
neighborhood, and this is reflected in their projects.

The Drexel Development Historic District was designed to establish an exemplar of the
speculative row in West Philadelphia, a process that has been endorsed by the staff of
the Philadelphia Historical Commission as part of a program to provide National Register
protection for a range of typical period buildings across the city. The creation of

the historic district also has been endorsed by the Pine Street Residents Association
and its Baltimore Avenue neighbors as part of a larger effort to restore their facades,
where they have been altered, and their neighborhood. Preliminary negotiations have
begun with the Philadelphia Historic Preservation Corporation to establish, with sub-
stantial funds from the treasury of the resident's association, a low-interest revolving
fund for facade restoration and maintenance. National Register status would further aid
the effort by providing some protection from University expansion, tax benefits for the
rehabilitation of the commercial properties in the proposed district, and the potential
for a facade easement program. The quality of the housing, combined with an active
community organization with preservation goals in mind, creates an ideal place to
establish an exemplar of late-19th century speculative-development in West Philadelphia.
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Verbal boundary description and justification The Drexel Development Historic District begins at the
northewst corner of South 40th St. and Baltimore Ave. and extends northward along S. 40th St.
" to Pine St., then eastward along the 3900 block of Pine, including all buildings fronting on
- Pine to new 39th St., then south on new 39th St. to Baltimore Ave., then '(continued)

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county . code

-

state code county ' code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Carl E. Doebley, Vice-President

organization Clio Group, Imnc. date 3 February 1981
street & number 3961 Baltimore Avenue telephone - (215). 386-6276
city or town Philadelphia state PA 19104

12. State Historic Preservation OGfficer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—— national —___ state —__local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic. Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by thg H_eritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

titte | ' o date

- For HCRS use only : ‘ s - o _ o &

... | hereby certify that this property is included in the National Registe o 5
date

 Keeper of the National Register _ : o

- Attest: ‘ ‘ " date 3

. Chiet of Registration , , o , » S

GPO 938 83%
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west along Baltimore Avenue, including all buildings fronting on the north side of
. Baltimore Avenue to the point of origin.
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